

# CANTERBURY RADIO CONTROL CAR CLUB INCORPORATED

## RULES

1. NAME

The name of the society is the Canterbury Radio Control Car Club Incorporated

2. OBJECTIVE

The objectives of the Society are for the promotion of and participation in the sport radio controlled circuit car racing

3. MEMBERSHIP

A person will become a member of the Society upon payment of all subscriptions due and upon gaining approval from all officers that the Society objectives will be fulfilled.

4. TYPES OF MEMBERSHIPS

FULL	A member who pays full subscription and participates in the club racing
FAMILY	A member who has another member of the same family and address paying a full subscription
JOINT	A member of the Christchurch Radio Electric Car Club Incorporated who participates in this clubs racing

All types of membership have a term of one year, ending on the 31st of October each year.

Voting rights; Full, Family, and Joint members have full voting rights.

Admittance to the club: Membership will be the decision of the committee

5. SUBSCRIPTIONS

Subscriptions will be determined at the Annual General Meeting and struck twelve (12) months later.

Only full subscriptions throughout the year will be accepted for renewing members of Canterbury Radio Control Car Club Incorporated. New members fees will be reduced to 50% of the full subscription if joining after March.

6. TO CEASE MEMBERSHIP

To cease membership of the Society any or all of the following applies:

- A. Voluntary resignation
- B. Non payment of subscriptions by the 31st of October each year
- C. Expulsion for misconduct, or failure to abide by the club rules, to be determined by a full committee meeting.

With the ceasing of membership no claim can be made to any properties or monies of the Society, also no monies owing and no portion of the annual subscription will be refunded.

7. ALTERING, ADDING TO, OR RESCINDING THE RULES

To alter, add or rescind any to rules of the Society a general meeting must be called and the addition, alteration, or rescinding of any rule must be put to the vote.

8. NOTICE OF A GENERAL MEETING

- A. To hold a general meeting, a notice will be sent to every member of the Society by mail or email and by social media posting at least 14 days prior to the meeting being held.
- B. A quorum is required, being 1/3 of the membership including 3 committee members to hold a general meeting of the Society.

9. VOTING

Voting will be done by a show of hands or by ballot

10. APPOINTMENT OF OFFICERS OF THE SOCIETY

- A. The officers of the society are.
  - President
  - Secretary
  - Treasurer
  - Two committee members holding no other office in the Society
- B. All officers of the Society are open for re-election at the Annual General Meeting in August of each year. Nominations for the officers can be made in writing before the meeting, or verbally at the meeting
- C. An individual vote is taken of every separate office of the Society.
- D. A nominated member cannot vote for themselves.
- E. Any member of the Society can hold only one office

11. COMMITTEE MEETINGS

A committee meeting shall be held at least once a month or when necessary. To hold a committee meeting a quorum shall exist of at least 4 committee members, this to include two (2) executive members of the committee

12. COMMITTEE

The committee may appoint a sub-committee and fill any vacancy occurring between Annual General Meetings.

13. CONTROL OF THE COMMON SEAL

- A. The president and the Secretary together have control of the Common Seal, no individual control of the seal is permitted.
- B. The Secretary shall have custody of the Common Seal.
- C. The affixing of the Common Seal must be witnessed by both the President and the Secretary of the Society.

14. CONTROL AND INVESTMENT OF THE FUNDS OF THE SOCIETY

- A. For any transactions with the Societies funds approval of the committee must be acquired.
- B. All withdrawals from the Societies accounts must be signed by both the president or Secretary and the Treasurer of the Society.

15. BORROWING OF MONEY BY THE SOCIETY

If and when the Society wishes to borrow money a general meeting must be held and the request put to the vote.

16. WINDING UP OR DISSOLUTION OF THE SOCIETY

In the event of the winding up or dissolution of the Society Section 24 of the Act will be followed. All assets to be sold and the surplus funds remaining after payment of costs, debts and liabilities are to be donated to a charitable organisation. No funds are to be distributed to any current members

17. RACE TRACK

The race track located at Ruapuna, known as the Ruapuna Model Raceway is the property of the Society.

Changes:

- Section 8
  - A. To hold a general meeting notice must be sent by mail to every member of the Society at least 14 days prior to the meeting being held

Change to:

  - A. To hold a general meeting, a notice will be sent to every member of the Society by mail or email or by social media posting.
- Section 10
  - Removal of sub-section F
  - Any officers of the Society cannot hold office in another Radio Controlled Car Club.

Authorized by  
President

Secretary

Treasurer